
1 
 

 
 

 

County of Inyo 
Planning Commission 

 
Board of Supervisors Room 

Inyo County Administrative Center 
Independence, California 

 

 
INYO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
Howard Lehwald  First District                          Inyo County Planning Commission 
Caitlin (Kate) J. Morley Second District            Post Office Drawer L 
Todd Vogel   Third District (Chair)             Independence, CA 93526 
Callie Peek   Fourth District (Vice Chair)                     (760) 878-0263 
Aaron Cassell             Fifth District                  (760) 872-2712 FAX 
                                                          inyoplanning@inyocounty.us  
                      
STAFF 
Cathreen Richards  Planning Director 
Danielle Visuaño   Senior Planner 
Ryan Standridge    Associate Planner 
Cynthia Draper   Associate Planner 
Sally Faircloth   Project Coordinator 
Michael Errante   Public Works Director 
Denelle Carrington  Interim County Administrator 
Christian Milovich  Assistant County Counsel 
 
This meeting will be held in the Board of Supervisors Room located at 224 N. Edwards 
Street, in Independence California, beginning at 10:00 a.m.  
 
• Items will be heard in the order listed on the agenda unless the Planning Commission rearranges the order, or the items are continued.  

Estimated start times are indicated for each item.  The times are approximate, and no item will be discussed before its listed time. 
• Lunch Break will be given at the Planning Commission’s convenience. 
• The Planning Commission Chairperson will announce when public testimony can be given for items on the agenda. The Commission 

will consider testimony on both the project and related environmental documents. 
• The applicant or any interested person may appeal all final decisions of the Planning Commission to the Board of Supervisors.  Appeals 

must be filed in writing to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors within 15 calendar days per ICC Chapter 15 [California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Procedures] and Chapter 18 (Zoning), and 10 calendar days per ICC Chapter 16 (Subdivisions), of the action by 
the Planning Commission.  If an appeal is filed, there is a fee of $300.00.  Appeals and accompanying fees must be delivered to the 
Clerk of the Board Office at County Administrative Center Independence, California. If you challenge in court any finding, 
determination or decision made pursuant to a public hearing on a matter contained in this agenda, you may be limited to raising only 
those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing, or in written correspondence delivered to the Inyo County Planning 
Commission at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

 
Public Notice:  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the Planning Department at (760) 878-0263 (28 CFR 35.102-3.104 ADA Title II).  Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  Should you because of a disability require 
appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Planning Department 2 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County 
to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format (Government Code Section 54954.2). 
 
 

December 03, 2025 
 
10:00 A.M.  
 

 

mailto:inyoplanning@inyocounty.us


2 
 

1.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  
 
2. ROLL CALL – Roll Call to be taken by staff. 
 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD – This is the opportunity for anyone in the audience 

to address the Planning Commission on any planning subject that is not scheduled on 
the agenda. 

 
4.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Approval of minutes from the October 22, 2025, 

Planning Commission Meeting. 
 
5. MINOR AMENDMENT TO CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 1978-09 AND 

RECLAMATION PLAN 78-02 (TWIN MOUNTAIN ROCK VENTURE / RED 
HILL QUARRY) – Approval of a minor amendment to Condition #4 to revise the 
required mapping frequency from annual to every five (5) years and to allow the use 
of updated mapping technologies such as drone-based photogrammetry and handheld 
GPS-based elevation tools. The project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 
15301 (Existing Facilities). 

 
6. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS/COMMENTS 
 
7.  PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
8. ADJORN 
 
 
 
 

  
 

Action 
Item / 
Public 

Hearing 



 
 
 

County of Inyo  Page 1 Planning Commission Minutes  
  October 22, 2025 

   ` 
COUNTY OF INYO 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES OF OCTOBER 22, 2025 MEETING 
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
HOWARD LEHWALD                                     FIRST DISTRICT   Inyo County Planning Commission 
CAITLIN (KATE) J.  MORLEY   SECOND DISTRICT  Post Office Drawer L 
TODD VOGEL    THIRD DISTRICT (CHAIR)  Independence, CA 93526 
CALLIE PEEK    FOURTH DISTRICT (VICE)                      (760) 878-0263 
AARON CASSELL    FIFTH DISTRICT   (760) 872-0712 FAX  
                              
                                                     
 STAFF: 
CATHREEN RICHARDS   PLANNING DIRECTOR 
CHRISTIAN MILOVICH   ASSISTANT COUNTY COUNSEL 
RYAN STANDRIDGE   ASSOCIATE PLANNER 
DANIELLE VISUANO   SENIOR PLANNER 
CYNTHIA DRAPER   ASSISTANT PLANNER   
SALLY FAIRCLOTH   PROJECT COORDINATOR 
DENELLE CARRINGTON   ACTING COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
MIKE ERRANTE    PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
 
The Inyo County Planning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, October 22, 2025. Commissioner Vogel opened the meeting 
at 10:05  a.m. These minutes are to be considered for approval by the Planning Commission at their next scheduled meeting.  
 
 
ITEM 1: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – All recited the Pledge of Allegiance at 10:05 a.m.  
 
ITEM 2: ROLL CALL - Commissioners, Todd Vogel, Callie Peek, Kate Morley, Howard 

Lehwald and Aaron Cassell were present. 
   

Staff present: Cathreen Richards, Planning Director, Danielle Visuaño, Senior Planner, 
Sally Faircloth, Project Coordinator, Christian Milovich, Assistant County Counsel and 
Stacey Simon, Assistant County Counsel. 
 
Staff absent: Denelle Carrington, Acting County Administrator; Michael Errante, 
Public Works Director. 
 
Prior to the start of Agenda Item Nine, Chair Vogel announced his intention to recuse 
himself from participation and noted that Vice Chair Peek would preside over the 
meeting for that item. He also requested that any members of the audience wishing to 
speak on an agenda item complete a Request to Speak slip available at the front counter 
to assist in keeping the meeting organized and advised that public comments would be 
limited to three minutes per speaker. 
 

ITEM 3: PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD – This item provides the opportunity for the public 
to address the Planning Commission on any planning subject that is not scheduled on 
the agenda.   

 
Chair Vogel opened Public Comment Period at 10:06 a.m. 
 



 
 
 

County of Inyo  Page 2 Planning Commission Minutes  
  October 22, 2025 

Chair Vogel asked if there was anyone in the audience wishing to make a public 
comment. 
 
No comments were made.   
 
Chair Vogel closed Public Comment Period at 10:06 a.m. 
 

ITEM 4:   APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Approval of minutes from the August 27, 2025, 
Planning Commission Meeting. 

 
MOTION: Commissioner Morley made the motion to approve the minutes.  The motion was 

seconded by Vice Chair Peek. 
 
 Hearing no objections, the minutes of the August 27, 2025, meeting were approved by 

general consent at 10:06 a.m.   
 
ITEM 5:  TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP-432; ZONE RECLASSIFICATION 2025-02/Wilson - 

The applicant (Dwayne Wilson) is requesting to subdivide a parcel into four parcels for 
existing and future residential development.  This action requires a Tentative Parcel Map. 
This Tentative Parcel Map also requires a Zone Reclassification to create the correct land 
use designation for all of the proposed new parcels. The project is located at 250 Panorama 
Dr., Bishop, California, has a Zoning Designation of R-1 Districts – One Family 
Residences with a 1.0 acre minimum, with Tax Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 013-180-
02.  This project is exempt from CEQA under General Rule 15061(b)(3). 

 
 Prior to presenting her staff report for Agenda Item 5, Danielle Visuaño, Senior Planner, 

distributed copies and informed the Commission that she had received a total of four public 
comments. She submitted the public comments along with a revised tentative parcel map, 
an area zoning and acreage map, and an area general plan map for the Commissioners to 
review. Time was allowed for the Commission to review the additional materials before 
she proceeded with her report. 

 
At 10:14 a.m., Ms. Visuaño began her presentation with a slideshow.  

 
Chair Vogel asked Ms. Visuaño a question as to why this item was exempt from CEQA. 
 
Ms. Visuaño stated there is no significant impact, no development, established residence 
and existing easement. 
 
Commissioners continued to have multiple questions of Ms. Visuaño. 
 
Ms. Visuaño was able to answer the Commissioners questions to their satisfaction. 
 
Commissioner Peek asked Ms. Visuaño about rain, corrosion and run off issues in that area. 
 
Ms. Visuaño stated that she was not aware but advised the Commission that the proponent 
was present in the audience to address any questions. 
 
As Mr. Wilson approached the podium to speak, Chair Vogel noted for the record that the 
proponent, Mr. Dwayne Wilson, was present to address and answer the Commission’s 
questions. 



 
 
 

County of Inyo  Page 3 Planning Commission Minutes  
  October 22, 2025 

 
At this time, Mr. Wilson stated that he had not observed any signs of erosion; however, he 
noted that he does not walk the property daily. He further stated that if any erosion were to 
occur, it would be addressed appropriately and that any necessary work would not be done 
in a substandard manner. 
 
Mr. Wilson stated that he believed the proposed subdivision would be the best use of the 
property and noted that, rather than proposing five or six lots, he was proposing four lots. 
 
Mr. Wilson then stated that there were no definitive development plans for the property at 
this time but felt it would be prudent to establish the subdivision in preparation for potential 
future use. 
 
Mr. Wilson concluded by stating that he was not accustomed to being in an adversarial role 
and that his intent was to work collaboratively to reach a resolution. 
 
Chair Vogel opened Public Hearing Period at 10:44 a.m. 
 
Prior to beginning public hearing comments, Ms. Visuaño asked Chair Vogel for 
permission to return to Commissioner Peek’s earlier question regarding erosion and runoff 
issues. 
 
Ms. Visuaño followed up on Commissioner Peek’s question regarding erosion and 
drainage, noting that these issues would be addressed through the building permit process, 
during which appropriate erosion and drainage plans would be required. 
 
Chair Vogel then asked a follow-up question regarding dust and noise control and whether 
processes would be put in place to address those issues. 
 
Ms. Visuaño was able to answer the Chair Vogel’s question to his satisfaction. 
 
Commissioner Lehwald inquired whether SWPPP (Storm Water Pollution Prevention 
Plan) was applicable. 
 
Ms. Visuaño confirmed that it was. 
 
Chair Vogel opened Public Hearing Period at 10:41 a.m. 
 
The Chair recognized Debra Niehans as the first public speaker, and she provided 
comment. Subsequently, the Chair recognized Bruce Klein and Heather Edwall, both of 
whom provided public comments. 
 
Chair Vogel closed the public hearing and opened discussion with the Commissioners at 
10:54 a.m.   
 
Commissioner Morley asked the staff about noticing procedures, and Planning Director 
Cathreen Richards responded. 
 
Commissioner Peek provided comments regarding wells and requested confirmation that 
Sarah Peterson, who works for the County, is the appropriate staff member to handle 
inquiries related to wells. 



 
 
 

County of Inyo  Page 4 Planning Commission Minutes  
  October 22, 2025 

 
Commissioners had questions and comments regarding dwelling numbers, water supply, 
drainage, subdivisions, clarification of SB 9 and CEQA issues. 
 
Ms. Richards and Ms. Visuaño addressed the Commission’s comments and answered each 
question.  
 
Chair Vogel asked Heather Edwall to return to the podium to address an additional 
question. 
 
Ms. Edwall inquired about the number of accessory dwelling units permitted on a parcel. 
 
Ms. Visuaño addressed the question by citing relevant State law. 
 
Assistant County Counsel Christian Milovich advised the Commission that, given the 
number of public comments and the questions that may require additional staff research, a 
continuance might be warranted. Ms. Milovich further explained that if the Commission 
elected to continue the item, a new date and time would need to be determined. 
 
Chair Vogel moved to continue the agenda item to a later date to allow the Commission 
and Planning staff additional time to process the comments and information received. 
 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Morley.    
 
Chair Vogel asked for a roll call. 
 
Project Coordinator, Sally Faircloth, proceeded with roll call for the vote. 
 
Chair Vogel – Yes 
Commissioner Peek – Yes 
Commissioner Morley – Yes 
Commissioner Lehwald – No 
Commissioner Cassell – Yes 
 
The motion passed, 4-1, at 11:11 a.m.  
 

ITEM 6:  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 2025-03/VERTICAL BRIDGE – BIG PINE; 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS PLAN UPDATE 2025-02/Verizon; NEW 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS PLAN 2025-01/T-MOBILE.   The applicant, VB BTS III 
(“Vertical Bridge”) through Representative Assurance Development, has submitted an 
application to update Verizon’s existing Telecommunications Plan and approve T-
Mobile’s New Telecommunications Plan and request a Conditional Use Permit to construct 
a 125-foot monopole tower.  The tower project will be equipped with, (24) RRUs, (2) 2-
foot microwave antennas, (2) GPS antenna, required antenna cabling, HCS jumpers, (4) 
ground mounted radio cabinets, (4) surge suppressors, (1) equipment canopy, (1) fiber box, 
(1) 200A ILC cabinet, (1) manual service light switch timer, (2) backup diesel generators, 
(4) raised concrete pads, cable ice bridge, utility backboard and multi-meter utility service 
mounted on H-frame contained on a 100-foot by 100-foot lease area within a 71-foot by 
100-foot compound surrounded by a 6-foot chain link fence. The property is located at 
1001 Count Rd., Big Pine, California, has a Zoning Designation of Public Districts (P) and 
is owned by the County of Inyo, with Tax Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 018-090-01.  



 
 
 

County of Inyo  Page 5 Planning Commission Minutes  
  October 22, 2025 

The project is a Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

 
Danielle Visuaño, Associate Planner, presented the staff report along with presenting a 
slide show. 
 
Commissioners had questions and comments concerning both the tower’s placement and 
its coverage. 
 
Ms. Visuaño was able to answer the commissioner’s questions and comments. 
 
Ms. Visuaño continued her presentation and provided additional explanation of the 
slideshow. 
 
Commissioner Peek provided comments regarding the location and subsequently recused 
herself from the agenda item after recognizing that she had personal property interests in 
the area, doing so out of an abundance of caution. 
 
Ms. Visuaño continued her presentation and explained that, prior to construction, a 
biological survey must be completed to determine the presence of nesting birds, including 
the Yellow-billed Cuckoo, Swainson’s Hawk, and Burrowing Owl. 
 
Chair Vogel opened Public Hearing Period at 11:34 a.m. 
 
The Chair recognized Bill Lewis with Assurance Development, representing Vertical 
Bridge, Verizon and T-Mobile, as the first public speaker, and he provided comment. 
 
Commissioners Morley and Lehwald had questions of Mr. Lewis. 
 
Mr. Lewis and Ms. Visuaño was able to answer the Commissioners questions to their 
satisfaction. 
 
Chair Vogel subsequently recognized Mr. Jr. Lamia as the second public speaker. Mr. 
Lamia offered public comment in support of the project. 
 
Chair Vogel closed the public hearing and opened discussion with the Commissioners at 
11:52 a.m.   
 

MOTION:  Commissioner Morley moved to recommend to adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
of Environmental Impact Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, prepared 
for Conditional Use permit (CUP) 2025-03/Vertical Bridge- Big Pine; 
Telecommunications Plan Update 2025-02/ Verizon; New Telecommunications Plan 
2025-01/ T-Mobile. Make certain findings with respect to, and approve, Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) 2025-03/Vertical Bridge- Big Pine and also make certain findings with 
respect to, and approve, Telecommunications Plan Update 2025-02/Verizon: New 
Telecommunications Plan 2025-01/T-Mobile. 

 
Commissioner Lehwald seconded the motion.  

 The motion passed unanimously 4–0 at 11:54 a.m., with Commissioner Peek recused. 

 



 
 
 

County of Inyo  Page 6 Planning Commission Minutes  
  October 22, 2025 

ITEM 7:   AMENDMENT TO CONDITIONAL USE 1973-14 AND RECLAMATION PLAN 
1990-03 BYK HECTORITE MINE; GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 2025-03 - The 
applicant, BYK USA Inc., requests a minor amendment to extend the term of Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) No. 73-14 and associated Reclamation Plan No. 90-03 for the California 
Hectorite Mine (Mine ID #91-14-0013), previously operated by Industrial Mineral 
Ventures (IMV) and Floridin Company. The current CUP and reclamation plan are 
scheduled to expire on February 27, 2024. The amendment proposes a 25-year extension 
through February 27, 2049, with no changes to the approved scope, intensity, or methods 
of mining and reclamation. The project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines §15061(b)(3) (Common Sense Exemption). 

 
Ms. Ryan Standridge, Associate Planner/SMARA Coordinator presented the staff report 
and accompanying slideshow. 
 
Commissioner Morley asked whether the reclamation plan revision was created solely due 
to the timeline situation. 
 
Ms. Standridge responded and was able to answer Commissioner Morley’s question to her 
satisfaction.  
 

 Chair Vogel opened and closed Public Hearing Period and opened discussion with the 
Commissioners at 12:04 p.m.   
 

MOTION:     Chair Vogel moved to approve the Amendment to CUP No. 73-14 and associated 
Reclamation Plan No. 90-3 General Plan Amendment (GPA) 2025-03, with the findings 
one through seven and conditions of approval one through twenty-six as identified in the 
Staff Report and find the project is exempt under CEQA.  

 
 The motion was seconded by Commissioner Peek.   
 
 The motion passed by general consent 5-0 at 12:05 p.m. 

 
ITEM 8:   RECLAMATION PLAN 2023-01 ZURICH PIT(MS308)CALTRANS – Approval of a 

14-acre reclamation plan for the Zurich Pit with adoption of a CEQA Mitigated Negative 
Declaration. 

 
Ms. Ryan Standridge, Associate Planner/SMARA Coordinator presented the staff report 
and accompanying slideshow. 
 
Commissioners Morley and Cassell posed questions and sought clarification regarding 
mining acreage and secondary uses. 
 
Ms. Standridge addressed Commissioner Morley’s question to her satisfaction and 
deferred Commissioner Cassell’s question to Forest Beckett of Caltrans, who was 
present in the audience. 
 
Assistant County Counsel Christian Milovich posed a question to Ms. Standridge 
concerning financial assurance. 
 
Ms. Standridge provided a response that satisfied Ms. Milovich. 
 



 
 
 

County of Inyo  Page 7 Planning Commission Minutes  
  October 22, 2025 

 Chair Vogel opened and closed Public Hearing Period and opened discussion with the 
Commissioners at 12:17 p.m.   
 

MOTION:     Chair Vogel moved to approve Reclamation plan 2023-01/Zurich Pit (MS#308) Caltrans, 
with the findings one through seven and conditions of approval one through twenty-one as 
identified in the Staff Report and adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
CEQA.  

 
 The motion was seconded by Commissioner Lehwald.   
 
 The motion passed by general consent 5-0 at 12:19 p.m. 

 

Before the presentation for Item 9 began, Chair Vogel recused himself from consideration 
of this item. 

A brief recess was called at 12:19 p.m., and the meeting reconvened at 12:24 p.m., prior to 
the presentation of this item. 

 

Assistant County Counsel Christian Milovich contacted the applicant, Mr. David Foroudi, 
via conference call. Mr. Foroudi was placed on hold until the meeting reconvened. 

 

The meeting reconvened at 12:24 p.m., and Mr. Foroudi joined by conference call. Ms. 
Milovich advised him of those present and informed him that Vice Chair Peek was chairing 
the item due to Chair Vogel’s recusal. 

 

ITEM 9:   Reconsideration of August 27, 2025, Revocation of Hosted Short-term Rental Permit 
2024-03/Foroudi - On August 27, 2025, the Commission held a hearing pursuant to Inyo 
County Code section 18.73.070 on the proposed modification or revocation of Hosted 
Short-term Rental Permit 2024-03/Foroudi.  The Commission voted 3-1 (one absent) to 
revoke the permit. The Commission is being asked today to revisit its decision in light of 
a procedural issue at the hearing. The issue may be resolved during reconsideration, thereby 
allowing the prior decision to stand and enabling the permit holder(s) to pursue an appeal 
to the Board of Supervisors. However, if it is not resolved, then the Commission should 
vacate its prior decision and order that a new hearing be scheduled. This item is exempt 
from CEQA pursuant to 15061 – the common sense exemption, and pursuant to 15321 – 
enforcement actions by regulatory agencies. 

 

At this time, Assistant County Counsel Christian Milovich advised Mr. Foroudi that Vice 
Chair Peek would be asking him questions related to this item and explaining how the 
Commission would proceed with his item today. 

 



 
 
 

County of Inyo  Page 8 Planning Commission Minutes  
  October 22, 2025 

Vice Chair Peek read a question to Mr. Foroudi asking if there was any measurable impact 
to Todd Vogel’s parcel. 

 

Mr. Foroudi disagreed.  

 

Ms. Milovich then asked Mr. Foroudi if his attorney was present with him during this call. 

 

Mr. Foroudi stated that his attorney was not present. 

 

Ms. Milovich then confirmed that Mr. Foroudi disagreed and stated that the Commission 
would be advised to revoke the previous revocation and set a date today for the next 
hearing, at which the Commission would determine whether his permit should be revoked. 

 

MOTION:     Vice Chair Peek moved to vacate the Commission’s decision of August 27, 2025, revoking 
HSTRP 2024-03/ Foroudi and direct staff to schedule and notice a new hearing.  

 
 The motion was seconded by Commissioner Morley.   
 
 Chair Vogel asked for a roll call.  
 
 Project Coordinator, Sally Faircloth, proceeded with roll call for the vote.  
 

 Vice Chair Peek  – Yes  
 Commissioner Cassell – Yes  

 Commissioner Lehwald – Yes 

 Commissioner Morley – Yes  

 Commissioner Vogel was recused and did not participate in the vote. 

 The motion passed, 4-0, at 12:32 p.m. 

 Planning Director, Cathreen Richards, advised the date for the next hearing would be 
on December 3, 2025. 

 
 Ms. Milovich advised Mr. Foroudi that the next hearing date would be December 3, 

2025. 
 
 Mr. Foroudi confirmed the December 3, 2025, Planning Commission meeting and 

asked commission if he could attend the meeting via zoom meeting. 
 
 Vice Chair Peek advised Mr. Foroudi that the Planning Commission did not have zoom 

capabilities, and he would need to attend in person. 



 
 
 

County of Inyo  Page 9 Planning Commission Minutes  
  October 22, 2025 

 Vice Chair Peek also advised Mr. Foroudi that if he could not attend the December 3, 
2025, meeting in person, the next meeting would be held on January 28, 2025. 

 
  
COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT/COMMENTS  
  

Chair Vogel returned to the meeting and offered remarks regarding the confusion 
associated with the preceding item. 
 
Assistant County Counsel Christian Milovich commented on the communication 
breakdowns and apologized on behalf of the County Counsel’s Office. 
 
Commissioner Lehwald commented on the Planning Commission packet and requested if 
staff could identify the page numbers to which they are referring when presenting an item. 
 
Ms. Milovich stated that staff can be directed to reference specific page numbers during 
presentations and added that Commissioners are welcome to ask staff which page is being 
referenced as items are presented. 
 
Commissioner Cassell asked Assistant County Counsel should they do research on an item 
prior to a meeting. 
 
Ms. Milovich advised Commissioner Cassell that Commissioners should not conduct 
independent research on items pending before the Commission. 
 
 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT   
 
Ms. Richards stated the next meeting will be held on December 3, 2025.  
 
 

ADJOURNMENT   
 
Chair Vogel adjourned the meeting at 12:46 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by:       
Sally Faircloth 
Planning Department 
































































































































































































































































	PCAgenda 12.03.25.pdf
	10.22.25  Minutes.pdf
	ITEM 1: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – All recited the Pledge of Allegiance at 10:05 a.m.
	ITEM 2: ROLL CALL - Commissioners, Todd Vogel, Callie Peek, Kate Morley, Howard Lehwald and Aaron Cassell were present.
	Ms. Standridge responded and was able to answer Commissioner Morley’s question to her satisfaction.

	ITEM 5 - STAFF REPORT.pdf

